
 
 

Board of Commissioners 
Packet 

 
Thursday, February 27, 2025 

Hybrid Meeting  
via Zoom and  

 
Trios Care Center at Vista Field 

521 N. Young Street Kennewick, WA 99336 

5:00 p.m. 



Kennewick Public Hospital District 
Thursday, February 27,  2025 | Hybrid Meeting 

5:00 PM 
AGENDA 

I. District Business: 
A. Approval of Consent Agenda* 
B. Public Comment – 

II. NEW BUSINESS: 
A. Reports 

1. Lee Kerr – Superintendent, General Update  
2. Legal Report - Heidi Ellerd, Legal Counsel 

a. Updates – Records Requests 
3. Administrative Report, Salem Thompson, Board Coordinator 

 
B. Committee Reports/Recommendations 

1. Finance Committee – Gary Long/Erica Davis 
a. Overview of January 2025 Financials – Erica Davis 
b. Acceptance of January 2025 Financial statements* 
c. Approval of January 2025 payments and disbursements* 
d. Treasurer’s Report – Gary Long 
e. Management response letter to the Eide Bailly Audit 
f. Accountability audit letter from the State Auditor Office 

 
2. Governance Committee Updates – Mark Brault 

a. Benton Franklin Health District 
b. Reminder to complete your PDC F1 
c. ADS workshop (April) 

 
3. Planning Committee – Wanda Briggs 

a. General Update 
 

4. Adult Day Services – General Update: Rick Reil/Spencer Harris 
a. Progress with transition to Guardian Financial  
b. Discussion on District work session regarding ADS. 

C. Commissioner Candidate Interviews 

1. Executive Session RCW 42.30.110(1)(h) 

2. Appointment of new commissioner* 

3. Oath of Office Administration* 
 
 

III. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
IV. Upcoming items – NONE 
V. BOARD MEETINGS/EVENTS/EDUCATION 

Next Regularly Scheduled Board Meeting – Thursday, March, 27, 2025 @ 5:00p.m. 
Close of Meeting 



 
 
 
 
 

Kennewick Public Hospital District 
Kennewick, Benton County, Washington 

Consent Agenda 
February 27, 2025 

All Materials under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by the Board of Commissioners and will 
be adopted by one motion in the form listed below. There will be no separate discussion of these items. 
An item may be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered separately if the board members or 
the public desire further discussion. 

 
 

 

1. Approval of Minutes 
a. Meeting Minutes, January 30, 2025. 



Page 1 of 3 
 

Kennewick Public Hospital District 
Trios Care Center 521 N. Young St. Kennewick, WA 99336 

Thursday, January 30, 2025 | Hybrid Meeting 5:00 PM  
MINUTES 

Attendance: Mark Brault, Gary Long, Marv Kinney, Spencer Harris, Wanda Briggs, Rick Reil, Lee 
Kerr, Erica Davis, Heidi Ellerd 
  
I. District Business: 

A. Approval of Consent Agenda  
It was moved and seconded to approve the CONSENT AGENDA INCLUDING 

the November 2024 minutes. All in favor. No discussion. Motion carried. 
 

B. Public Comment –NONE. 

II. NEW BUSINESS: 
A. Reports 

1. Lee Kerr – Superintendent, General Update –  
Benton Franklin Behavioral Health District meeting went well, remodel of the Auburn building 
is progressing. Lee discussed items related to the proposed facility including information on 
proposed navigator services and proposed contracts with service providers.  
Lee reported on pending litigation. 
Lee and Mark will meet with the Trios CEO in the next week or so and expect a discussion on  
a Trios representative to potentially work with the Planning Committee on any joint 
communications efforts. 

 
2. Legal Report - Heidi Ellerd, Legal Counsel 

a. Updates – Records Requests – Nothing new to report.  
 

3. Administrative Report, Salem Thompson, Board Coordinator 
a. Updates – Records work – Nothing new to report. 
 

B. Committee Reports/Recommendations 
1. Finance Committee – Gary Long/Erica Davis 

a. Acceptance of November and December 2024 financial statements– Overview by Erica Davis 
It was moved and seconded to approve the November and 
December 2024 financial statements as presented. All in favor. No 
discussion. Motion carried.  
 

b. Approval of November and December 2024 payments and disbursements.  
It was moved and seconded to approve the November and 
December 2024 Payments and disbursements as presented. All in 
favor. No discussion. Motion carried.  
 

c. Treasurer’s Report – Gary Long –  
Discussion on upcoming election costs. There will be a special election in February plus 
four commissioners up for election in the fall.  
Discussion on the Key Bank account changes coming soon. 
 

d. Audit updates – SAO audit exit conference went well; the work is complete. Reminder that 
the District has chosen to have SAO perform the required financial audits going forward.  



Page 2 of 3 
 

 
2. Governance Committee Updates – Mark Brault 

a. Greater Health Now – At their invitation, there was a discussion on exploring possible 
participation in a future project. 

b. Benton Franklin Health District – The District was offered a place on the committee 
working with the community health needs assessment to form a community health 
improvement plan. Mark will participate representing the District.  
 

c. Reminder to complete your PDC F1 in a timely manner. 
 

d. Approval of office lease at Trios Care Center at Vista Field.  
 

There is a need to terminate the old lease at the DeBit building before entering into the new 
lease.  
 
It was moved and seconded to authorize Lee KERR to sign both 
the termination of the OLD lease at the DeBit building and enter 
into the new lease for the Trios Care Center at Vista Field WITH 
A NOTARY SIGNATURE ADDED FOR LANDLORD. All in Favor. No 
Discussion. Motion carried. 

 
e. Resolution 2025-1 changing dates of two regular meetings. 

Rick Reil read the resolution title. 
It was moved and seconded to adopt Resolution 2025-1. All in 
favor. No discussion. Motion carried. 
 

f. Resolution 2025-2 Richmond Trust Endowment Fund 
Rick Reil read the resolution title. 
It was moved and seconded to adopt Resolution 2025-2. All in 
favor. No discussion. Motion carried. 
 

g. ADS board discussion – A working session is being planned to allow three commissioners 
at a time to discuss ADS. There were discussions on the rotation of commissioners to allow 
participation and insight. No schedule of rotation was determined. Dates for the working 
session will be determined soon.  

 
3. Planning Committee – Wanda Briggs/Marv Kinney 

a. Update – no meeting in January 2025. There will likely be a meeting February 18th.  
 

4. Adult Day Services – General Update: Rick Reil/Spencer Harris 
a. Update- Rick reported on the December 2024 ADS Board meeting. Lee Kerr was invited to 

attend via Zoom to provide the ADS board an opportunity to ask questions about the 
relationship between the two entities.  
At the meeting, it was discussed to have an additional KPHD commissioner (three 
commissioners) to serve on the ADS board. Per the bylaws, the District approves 
appointments to the ADS Board. Marv Kinney is willing to serve as well as Wanda Briggs.   

 
b. 2025 Budget approval – Overview by Rick Reil and Salem Thompson, ADS Executive 

Director.  
 

It was moved and seconded to approve the 2025 ads budget as 
presented. All in favor. No discussion. Motion carried. 



Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 

III. Executive Session RCW 42.30.110 (1) (h) To evaluate the qualifications of a candidate appointment 
to elective office 
At 5:43 pm the executive session was called for 15 minutes until 5:58pm 

 
At 5:58 pm the open meeting reconvened. 
 
It was moved and seconded to nominate both grace Davidson and 
Shannon Phipps, d.o. as candidates for the unexpired term of Sheila 
Dunlop, D.O.  (position 1) oF The Kennewick public hospital district. All in 
favor. No discussion. Motion carried. 
 
Lee Kerr reviewed the RCWs and process for the filling a commissioner vacancy.  
Lee Kerr was designated to complete the required public postings for the Notice of Vacancy and 
nominations and Salem Thompson was designated to update the District website with the notice of 
vacancy and the nominations. 

 
IV. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
V. Upcoming items – NONE 
VI. BOARD MEETINGS/EVENTS/EDUCATION 

Next Regularly Scheduled Board Meeting – Thursday, February 27, @ 5:00p.m. 
Close of Meeting 6:04pm 





























Kennewick Public Hospital District – Corrective Action Plan from 2023 Audit Findings 

Page 1 of 2  

Financial Statement Findings 
 

2023-001 Preparation of Financial Statements 
Material Weakness in Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

 
Condition The Organization does not have an internal control system designed to provide for the 

preparation of financial statements being audited, including related disclosures and 
preparation of the cash flow statement in accordance with GAAP. 

 
Responsible Parties KPHD Finance Committee; KPHD Board of Commissioners (Commission) 

 
Response Concur. Beginning in 2024, our contracted service provider will now assist 

management in preparing the accompanying notes to the financial statements.  

 
2023-002 Audit Adjustments 

Material Weakness in Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

Condition As part of our audit, we proposed significant audit adjustments to the financial 
statements, including accounts that were not reconciled at year end, that were not 
identified by management as a result of the Organization’s existing internal controls. 
A proper reconciliation between the Organization’s general ledger and subsidiary 
accounts was not performed on multiple accounts resulting in material audit 
adjustments. 

 
Responsible Parties Adult Day Services Board (ADS); KPHD Finance Committee 

 
Response Concur: To comply with the recommendation that management reflect all 

entries in the financial statements to ensure that the Board of Commissioners 
has all relevant information, ADS has contracted with Guardian Financial Group 
to prepare monthly reconciliations and financial statements. 

 
2023-003 Limited Segregation of Duties 

Material Weakness in Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
 

Condition  The District and ADS do not have an internal control system to allow for proper 
segregation of duties in certain areas of the accounting function. Inadequate 
segregation of duties could adversely affect ADS and the ability to detect and 
correct misstatements in a timely period in the normal course of performing 
the accounting function. 

Responsible Parties Commission; KPHD Finance Committee; ADS Board 

 (continued on next page) 

 

 



Kennewick Public Hospital District – Corrective Action Plan from 2023 Audit Findings 

Page 2 of 2  

Response Concur. The District recognizes the nature of its organization is such that complete 
segregation of duties may not be practically achieved. To reduce this risk, The District 
and ADS have implemented the following:  

1. ADS Board has contracted Guardian Financial Group to prepare monthly 
reconciliations and financial statements to supplement its own review. 
2. The KPHD Finance Committee has included a monthly review of ADS financial 
statements.  
3. ADS and District Financials are provided to the Commission for review. 

 
Compliance Finding 

 
2023-004 Proper Collateralization 

Noncompliance 

Criteria The Organization is required to maintain proper collateralization of deposits in qualified 
public depositories, as determined by the Revised Code of Washington, Chapter 39, that 
are not covered under the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). The 
Organization’s deposits were not properly collateralized at December 31, 2023 with 
approximately $338,000 in excess of FDIC limits and potentially at risk. 

 
Responsible Parties ADS Board of Directors 
 
Response Concur. In October 2023, the financial institution providing the required excess 

FDIC insurance coverage was changed and there was a three month lapse to move 
the excess funds. The accounts are now properly insured along with monthly 
processes and procedures to ensure no future lapses occur. 

 



Exit Recommendations 
Kennewick Public Hospital District No 1 

Audit Period Ending: 12/31/2023 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
We are providing the following exit recommendations for management’s consideration. They are 
not referenced in the audit report. We may review the status of the following exit items in our next 
audit. 

 
 
Accountability: 

 
Annual Report Filing 
We noted the 2023 report was filed 35 days late. 

 
We recommend that the District ensure their annual report is submitted by the deadline (or 
within 30 days after), to be compliant with RCW 43.09.230. 
 
Action: 
 
The District agrees with the finding. We are now aware the State will accept the annual report 
without completed audited financial statements, so the report will be filed in a timely manner. 



Kennewick Public Hospital District – Corrective Action Plan from 2023 Audit Findings 

Page 1 of 2  

Financial Statement Findings 
 

2023-001 Preparation of Financial Statements 
Material Weakness in Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

 
Condition The Organization does not have an internal control system designed to provide for the 

preparation of financial statements being audited, including related disclosures and 
preparation of the cash flow statement in accordance with GAAP. 

 
Responsible Parties KPHD Finance Committee; KPHD Board of Commissioners (Commission) 

 
Response Concur. Beginning in 2024, our contracted service provider will now assist 

management in preparing the accompanying notes to the financial statements.  

 
2023-002 Audit Adjustments 

Material Weakness in Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

Condition As part of our audit, we proposed significant audit adjustments to the financial 
statements, including accounts that were not reconciled at year end, that were not 
identified by management as a result of the Organization’s existing internal controls. 
A proper reconciliation between the Organization’s general ledger and subsidiary 
accounts was not performed on multiple accounts resulting in material audit 
adjustments. 

 
Responsible Parties Adult Day Services Board (ADS); KPHD Finance Committee 

 
Response Concur: To comply with the recommendation that management reflect all 

entries in the financial statements to ensure that the Board of Commissioners 
has all relevant information, ADS has contracted with Guardian Financial Group 
to prepare monthly reconciliations and financial statements. 

 
2023-003 Limited Segregation of Duties 

Material Weakness in Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
 

Condition  The District and ADS do not have an internal control system to allow for proper 
segregation of duties in certain areas of the accounting function. Inadequate 
segregation of duties could adversely affect ADS and the ability to detect and 
correct misstatements in a timely period in the normal course of performing 
the accounting function. 

Responsible Parties Commission; KPHD Finance Committee; ADS Board 

 (continued on next page) 

 

 



Kennewick Public Hospital District – Corrective Action Plan from 2023 Audit Findings 

Page 2 of 2  

Response Concur. The District recognizes the nature of its organization is such that complete 
segregation of duties may not be practically achieved. To reduce this risk, The District 
and ADS have implemented the following:  

1. ADS Board has contracted Guardian Financial Group to prepare monthly 
reconciliations and financial statements to supplement its own review. 
2. The KPHD Finance Committee has included a monthly review of ADS financial 
statements.  
3. ADS and District Financials are provided to the Commission for review. 

 
Compliance Finding 

 
2023-004 Proper Collateralization 

Noncompliance 

Criteria The Organization is required to maintain proper collateralization of deposits in qualified 
public depositories, as determined by the Revised Code of Washington, Chapter 39, that 
are not covered under the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). The 
Organization’s deposits were not properly collateralized at December 31, 2023 with 
approximately $338,000 in excess of FDIC limits and potentially at risk. 

 
Responsible Parties ADS Board of Directors 
 
Response Concur. In October 2023, the financial institution providing the required excess 

FDIC insurance coverage was changed and there was a three month lapse to move 
the excess funds. The accounts are now properly insured along with monthly 
processes and procedures to ensure no future lapses occur. 

 



Exit Recommendations 
Kennewick Public Hospital District No 1 

Audit Period Ending: 12/31/2023 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
We are providing the following exit recommendations for management’s consideration. They are 
not referenced in the audit report. We may review the status of the following exit items in our next 
audit. 

 
 
Accountability: 

 
Annual Report Filing 
We noted the 2023 report was filed 35 days late. 

 
We recommend that the District ensure their annual report is submitted by the deadline (or 
within 30 days after), to be compliant with RCW 43.09.230. 
 
Action: 
 
The District agrees with the finding. We are now aware the State will accept the annual report 
without completed audited financial statements, so the report will be filed in a timely manner. 




